CORRECTED CORRECTED CORRECTED

ARIZONA STATE LEGISLATURE
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL
Minutes of the Meeting
July 8, 2024
9:00 A.M., Senate Hearing Room 1

Members of the public may access a livestream of the meeting here:
https://www.azleg.gov/videoplayer/?clientiD=6361162879&eventlD=2024071002

Members Present:

Senator Warren Petersen, Chair 2023 Representative Ben Toma, Chair 2024
Senator Shawnna Bolick Representative Lupe Contreras

Senator Sonny Borrelli Representative Travis Grantham

Senator Denise “Mitzi” Epstein Representative Nancy Gutierrez

Senator Brian Fernandez Representative Teresa Martinez

Senator Sine Kerr Representative Quang Nguyen

Senator Juan Mendez Representative Stephanie Stahl-Hamilton
Staff:

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council
Elizabeth Dunfee, Assistant Director, Legislative Council
Michele Hanigsberg, Council Attorney, Legislative Council
Hannah Nies, General Counsel, Legislative Council
Steve Primack, Deputy Director, Legislative Council
Marge Ray, Council Attorney, Legislative Council

Nadine Sapien, Chief Editor, Legislative Council
Cameron Toering, Council Attorney, Legislative Council

Chairman Toma called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. and attendance was noted.

Representative Toma made opening remarks.

Update regarding Wesley Bolin Plaza Monuments and Memorials, including the
Buffalo Soldiers Monument

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, gave an update and highlighted
the issues that the Arizona Legislative Council encountered in managing and erecting
monuments and memorials, including the Buffalo Soldiers monument at Wesley Bolin
Plaza. Mr. Braun publicly thanked the Council for giving him the opportunity to raise these
issues and expressed his strong support for appointing a subcommittee to review these
issues.



Michelle London-Marable, Deputy Commander, introduced Commander Fred Marable
to the Council members and gave background information of the Buffalo Soldiers Arizona
Territory Monument. Deputy Commander London-Marable offered comments and urged
the Council on helping with this issue.

Representative Toma stated that he will be appointing a subcommittee of the Arizona
Legislative Council to study this matter and to make recommendations to the full Council
and the Legislature prior to the start of the next legislative session.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, explained that the reason for the
Council meeting today is to adopt an impartial analysis of each ballot measure and further
explained the statutory requirements of the information included in the publicity pamphlets
for ballot propositions and the layout of the information. Mr. Braun distributed a sample
publicity pamphlet for Proposition 209 that was published in 2022 (Attachment A) and
explained the pamphlet. Mr. Braun answered questions posed by the Council.

Prop. 133 — primary elections; eligible candidates

Marge Ray, Council Attorney, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the Staff
Draft analysis for Proposition 133 (Attachment B) and stated that the analysis complies
with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.
Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 133 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 14-0-0 (Attachment 1).

Representative Contreras explained his vote.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 19-124:
Prop. 134 — initiative; referendum; signatures; legislative districts

Cameron Toering, Council Attorney, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 134 (Attachment C) and stated that the analysis
comports with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Daniel Harris, representing the Arizona Farm Bureau, testified in support of the Staff
Draft analysis for Proposition 134.

James Barton, Attorney, Barton Mendez Soto Law Firm, representing himself,
testified as neutral to the Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 134 and offered a suggestion
on the Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 134. Mr. Barton answered questions posed by
the Council.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 2



Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, answered questions posed by
the Council.

Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment #1 as follows:

Line 12, after "Constitution" insert "to add geographic requirements as
follows:"

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.
Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Epstein #1 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment #2 as follows:

After line 18, insert "Proposition 134 does not include a dedicated funding
source."

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Epstein #2 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for

Proposition 134 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0 (Attachment 2).

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 135 — governor; emergency; powers

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 135 (Attachment D) and stated that the analysis
comports with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Representative Gutierrez explained her printed proposed amendment as follows:

Line 22, after "powers" insert "the Arizona Constitution otherwise requires
two-thirds of the members of each house in order to request a special
session of the Legislature"

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 3



The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Mr. Braun answered questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed
changes.

Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Gutierrez proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 135 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0 (Attachment 3).

Senator Epstein explained her vote.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 136 — ballot measures; challenges

Hannah Nies, General Counsel, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the Staff
Draft analysis for Proposition 136 (Attachment E) and stated that the analysis comports
with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Senator Fernandez explained his printed proposed amendment as follows:

Page 1, line 11, after the period insert "The proposition only applies to
measures proposed under the power of initiative and will not allow
judicial review of measures referred to the voters by legislative referral
prior to the general election."

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.
Senator Fernandez answered questions posed by the Council.

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, answered questions posed by
the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed
changes.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 4



Representative Toma called for a vote on the Fernandez proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment as follows:
Add "citizen" before the terms "initiative"

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.
Senator Epstein offered comments.

Representative Toma called for a vote on adding "citizen" to the
proposed draft.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for

Proposition 136 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0 (Attachment 4).

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 137 — judicial retention elections

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 137 (Attachment F) and stated that the analysis
comports with the requirements of Section 19-124. Mr. Braun distributed and explained
the Toma proposed amendment (Attachment G). Mr. Braun provided comments and,
with the Chairman's permission to consider, proposed striking language from the original
Staff Draft analysis as follows:

Page 2, strike lines 3 through 6
Line 7, strike through the period

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Mr. Braun explained the changes that are proposed to the original Staff Draft analysis
and answered questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma answered questions posed by the Council.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 5



Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed
changes.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Toma proposed
amendment (Attachment G). The motion CARRIED by voice vote.

Senator Mendez explained his printed proposed amendment #1 as follows:
Page 1, strike lines 13-16
Mr. Braun answered questions posed by the Council.
The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Representative Grantham offered comments and stated that he is opposed to the Mendez
proposed amendment #1.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Mendez proposed
amendment #1.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Mendez explained his printed proposed amendment #2 as follows:
Page 2, on line 9, after the comma, insert "it will apply retroactive and"
Representative Toma answered questions posed by the Council.

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Mendez proposed
amendment #2.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.

Mr. Braun noted that on the Speaker Slip (Attachment Q) Mr. James Barton was neutral
to the Staff Draft analysis for Prop 137.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 6



Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 137 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council as
amended. The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0
(Attachment 5).

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 138 — tipped workers; wages

Elizabeth Dunfee, Assistant Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed
the Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 138 (Attachment H) and stated that the analysis
complies with the requirements of Section 19-124. Ms. Dunfee answered questions
posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.
The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis.
Ms. Dunfee answered additional questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis.
Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment #1 as follows:

Line 5, strike "allow" insert "reduce the amount"; after "employer" insert
Ilmay payll

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Epstein #1 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment #2 as follows:

Line 8, after "worked" insert "Currently tipped workers may be paid $11.35
per hour. Under Proposition 138, tipped workers would be able to be
paid $10.76 per hour if the prior threshold requirement is met."

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Epstein #2 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 7



Senator Epstein explained her printed proposed amendment #3 as follows:

Line 12, strike "to establish compliance" insert "to document the eligibility of
the pay cut"

Representative Toma offered comments.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Epstein #3 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Mr. Braun noted that on the Speaker Slip (Attachment Q) Mr. James Barton was neutral
to the Staff Draft analysis for Prop 138.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 138 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0 (Attachment 6).

Senator Epstein and Representative Toma explained their votes.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 311 — death benefit; assault; first responders.

Steve Primack, Deputy Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 311 (Attachment I) and stated that the analysis
complies with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.

Representative Gutierrez explained her printed proposed amendment as follows:

Line 26, after the second "felony" insert "this would increase first time
offense presumptive prison sentence from 3 years to 5 years"

Line 28, after "felony" insert "this would increase first time offense
presumptive prison time from 6 years to 7.5 years"

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.
Representative Gutierrez further explained her printed proposed amendment.
Mr. Primack answered questions posed by the Council.

Representative Grantham offered comments and stated that he is opposed to the
Gutierrez proposed amendment.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 8



Representative Toma called for a vote on the Gutierrez proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for

Proposition 311 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-6-1 (Attachment 7).

Representative Gutierrez explained her vote.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 312 — property tax; refund; nuisance enforcement.

Elizabeth Dunfee, Assistant Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed
the Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 312 (Attachment J) and stated that the analysis
complies with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Jenna Bentley, Director of Government Affairs, Goldwater Institute, testified in
support of the Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 312.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 312 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-6-1 (Attachment 8).

Senator Epstein explained her vote.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 313 — sex trafficking; child; natural life

Steve Primack, Deputy Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 313 (Attachment K) and stated that the analysis
complies with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.

Representative Gutierrez explained her printed proposed amendment as follows:

Line 7, after "person" insert "including a minor charged as an adult under
the current statute”

Senator Epstein offered comments on the Gutierrez proposed amendment.
Legislative Council

July 8, 2024
Page 9



Representative Toma called for a vote on the Gutierrez proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 313 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-6-1 (Attachment 9).

Representative Toma explained his vote.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 314 — border; benefits; fentanyl; illegal entry

Steve Primack, Deputy Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 314 (Attachment L) and stated that the analysis
complies with the requirements of Section 19-124.

James Barton, Attorney, Barton Mendez Soto Law Firm, testified as neutral to the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 314 and suggested language changes to Proposition
314. Mr. Barton answered questions posed by the Council.

Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment #1 as follows:

Page 1, on line 1, after "establish" insert "state crimes related to a noncitizen
entering or attempting to enter this state from a foreign nation at a
location that is not a lawful port of entry or for failing to comply with
an order to leave this state. It would also establish”

Line 8, strike everything after the period
Line 9, strike everything

Representative Toma offered comments.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton #1
proposed amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment #2 as follows:

Page 1, between lines 10 and 11, insert the language from number 4 on
page 2

Renumber to conform

Page 1, strike line 34

Page 2, strike lines 1 through 24

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 10



Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton #2
proposed amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment #3 as follows:

Page 1, line 2, strike "both"
Line 3, strike "and" insert "or"

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton #3
proposed amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment #4 as
follows:

Page 1, line 1, before "Proposition" insert "Federal law currently provides a
framework for immigrants wishing to legally enter into the United States
and also provides penalties for individuals entering the United States
illegally. Any unlawful immigrant for whom any of the following apply
must be fined, or imprisoned for not more than six months, or both, for
not more than two years for a subsequent offense 1) entered or
attempted to enter the United States at any time or place other than a
designated by immigration officers; 2) eluded examination or inspection
by immigration officers; or 3) attempted to enter or obtain entry to the
United States by a willfully false or misleading representation or the
willful concealment of materials facts.

Current state law requires any natural person who applies for state,
local, or federal public benefit that requires participants to be citizens or
otherwise lawful residents in the United States to submit at least one
accepted document demonstrating their lawful presence and to sign a
sworn affidavit stating under penalty of perjury that the documents
presented are true. Currently, each employer must also use the
E-Verify program after hiring an employee to verify the employment
eligibility of the employee and must keep a record of the verification for
the duration of the employee's employment or at least three years,
whichever is longer."

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton #4
proposed amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 11



Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment #5 as follows:

Replace "an alien" with "a noncitizen"
Page 1, line 16
Line 34

Page 2, line 2

Line 3

Line 8

Line 9

Line 11 (2x)
Line 12
Line 13
Line 16
Line 20

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.
Representative Stahl-Hamilton further explained her printed proposed amendment #5.
Mr. Primack answered questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed
changes.

Mr. Primack answered additional questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton #5
proposed amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Representative Gutierrez explained her printed proposed amendment #9 as follows:

Page 2, line 24, after the period after person, insert "Proposition 314 does
not include a dedicated funding source."

The Council discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed changes.
Representative Toma offered comments.
Mr. Braun answered questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the wording of the Staff Draft analysis and the proposed
changes.

Mr. Braun answered additional questions posed by the Council.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 12



Representative Toma offered comments.

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Gutierrez #9 proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.
Representative Toma state that proposed amendment #10 will not be offered.

Senator Kerr identified a technical correction to the language for the Council to consider
as follows:

Page 2, line 16, adding the word "lawful" before port of entry
Mr. Primack answered questions posed by the Council.

Representative Toma called for a vote on adding the word "lawful” to
line 16, before port of entry. The motion CARRIED by voice vote.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 314 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council as
amended. The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-6-1
(Attachment 10).

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
Prop. 315 — rulemaking; legislative ratification; requlatory costs

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the
Staff Draft analysis for Proposition 315 (Attachment M) and stated that the analysis
comports with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Representative Toma called for public testimony. However, no one came forward.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
Proposition 315 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-6-1 (Attachment 11).

Senators Epstein, Petersen and Representative Toma explained their votes.
RECESS

At 11:48 a.m. the Chairman recessed the meeting to the sound of the gavel.
RECONVENE

At 12:24 p.m. the Chairman called the meeting to order.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 13



Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
1-02-2024 — One Fair Wage Act

Elizabeth Dunfee, Assistant Director, Legislative Council, electronically distributed
the Staff Draft analysis for 1-02-2024 (Attachment N) and stated that the analysis meets
the requirements of Section 19-124.

James Barton, Attorney, Barton Mendez Soto Law Firm, testified as neutral to
[-02-2024.

Ms. Dunfee answered questions posed by the Council.

Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
1-02-2024 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The motion
CARRIED with a roll call vote of 13-0-1 (Attachment 12).

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
1-05-2024 — Arizona Abortion Access Act

Michele Hanigsberg, Council Attorney, Legislative Council, electronically distributed
the Staff Draft analysis for 1-05-2024 (Attachment O) and stated that the analysis meets
with the requirements of Section 19-124.

Austin Yost, Coppersmith Brockelman PLC, representing the Arizona for Abortion
Access, testified in support of the Staff Draft analysis for 1-05-2024 and suggested
language recommendations for 1-05-2024. Mr. Yost answered questions posed by the
Council.

The Council discussed the Staff Draft analysis and the suggested language
recommendations.

Lezley Shepherd, representing herself, suggested language recommendations for
[-05-2024 and answered questions posed by the Council.

The Council further discussed the Staff Draft analysis and the suggested language
recommendations.

Representative Stahl-Hamilton explained her printed proposed amendment as follows:
Page 1, line 2, strike "unborn human being" insert "fetus"

Representative Toma called for a vote on the Stahl Hamilton proposed
amendment.

The motion FAILED by voice vote.

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 14



Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for
1-05-2024 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The motion
CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-6-0 (Attachment 13).

Representative Gutierrez and Senator Borrelli explained their votes.

Adoption of Ballot Analyses Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 19-124:
1-14-2024 — Make Elections Fair Arizona Act

Marge Ray, Council Attorney, Legislative Council, electronically distributed the Staff
Draft analysis for [-14-2024 (Attachment P) and stated that the analysis complies with the
requirements of Section 19-124.

Andrew Pappas, Osborn Maledon, representing Make Elections Fair, testified in
support of the Staff Draft analysis for [-14-2024 and suggested language
recommendations for 1-14-2024. Mr. Pappas answered questions posed by the Council.
Lezley Shepherd, representing herself, testified and offered comments for 1-14-2024.
Senator Petersen moved the adoption of the Draft analysis for

1-14-2024 prepared by the staff of the Legislative Council. The motion
CARRIED with a roll call vote of 14-0-0 (Attachment 14).

Appointment of Executive Director

Mike Braun, Executive Director, Legislative Council, explained the Legislative Council
rules and the requirement for the appointment of an Executive Director of the Legislative
Council. Mr. Braun introduced Steve Primack.

Senator Petersen moved the appointment of Steve Primack as the
Executive Director of the Arizona Legislative Council. The motion
CARRIED with a roll call vote of 14-0-0 (Attachment 15).

Senators Petersen, Epstein and Representative Toma explained their votes.
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:11 p.m.

Attached are forms noting the individuals who submitted a Speaker slip on the agenda
items (Attachment Q).

Respectfully submitted,

Imee L. Andrew
Committee Secretary

(Audio recordings and attachments are on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center,
Room 115. Audio archives are available at http://www.azleg.gov)

Legislative Council
July 8, 2024
Page 15




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


